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This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Ukrainian. All possible care
has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate presentation of the original. However, in all matters
of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence
over this translation.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the participant of LLC "LEGO Ukraine"

Disclaimer of opinion

We do not express an opinion on the financial statements of Limited Liability Company "LEGO
Ukraine" (the Company). Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for
disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of the Company, which comprise:

e the balance sheet (statement of financial position) as at 31 December 2021;

o the statement of financial results (statement of comprehensive income) for the year then ended;
o the statement of cash flows (direct method) or the year then ended;

e the statement of own equity for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion
Basis for disclaimer of opinion — going concern

Russian military invasion of Ukraine starting from 24 February 2022 has a significant impact on the
Company and on the Ukrainian economy as a whole. Due to ongoing military actions, inability to
import the products to the territory of Ukraine due to martial law restrictions and termination of selling
the products which have been already delivered before the war, the management is unable to predict
when and if the operating activity of the Company will resume. Since the commencement of military
invasion the Company’s activities are limited to submitting reports to the state authorities and paying
salaries to the staff. The management of the Company estimates that they have enough liquidity level
for paying the salary till the end of 2022. The Company did not prepare any estimations and budgets
with consideration of one or several scenarios of the Company’s operating activity in the short or long-
term prospective. Due to absence of any supporting information from the Company we were unable to
determine whether the presumption about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern is
appropriate.

Additional matter — Understatement of selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020
(comparative information)

The amount of selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 was understated by the
amount of UAH 42,452 thousand due to reversal of doubtful debt provision mistakenly created in 2019
which was not calculated in accordance with National Regulations (Standards) of Accounting in
Ukraine (NR(S)AU). Our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 was modified accordingly. Our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2021 is also modified because of the effects of this matter on the comparability of the
current period’s figures and the corresponding figures.

Limited Liability Company “PricewaterhouseCoopers Assurance”
75 Zhylyanska Str., Kyiv, 01032, Ukraine
T: +380 44 354 0404, www.pwc.com/ua
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Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements of
the Law on Audit of Financial Statements and Auditing that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Ukraine. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code.

Other information including the management report

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
management report (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon),
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. Because of the matter described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion
section of our report, we do not express any opinion whether the information given in the management
report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements or not.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NR(S)AU and financial reporting requirements of the Law on Accounting and
Financial Reporting in Ukraine, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matter
described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial
statements.

The key audit partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lyudmyla Pakhucha.

116 Priuunk Gopices s seereicl

LLC “PricewaterhouseCoopers Assurance” Lyudmyla Pakhucha ézzg - ‘
Registration number in the Register of Auditors and Registration number in thé Register of

Auditing Entities 4544 Auditors and Auditing Entities 101808

Kyiv, Ukraine

26 April 2022



LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company
Financial Statements in accordance with NR(S)AU as at and for the year ended
31 December 2021

Statement of Management’s Responsibilities

To the Participants of LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company

We have prepared the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021, which present
faltly, in all material respects, the financial position of LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company (the
“Company") as at 31 December 2021 and the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance
with National Regulations (Standards) of Accounting in Ukraine,

Management is responsible for ensuring that the Gompany keeps accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company and which enable the financial statements to
comply with National Regulations (Standards) of Accounting in Ukraine and that its statutory accounting
reports comply with Ukrainian laws and regulations Management also has a general responsibility for tak-
ing such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent
and detect fraud and other irregularities,

Management considers that in preparing the financial staternents set out on pages 4 — 49, the Company
has used appropriate accounting policies disclosed on pages 24 — 32, consistently applled and supported
by reasonable and prudent Judgements and estimates, and that all appropriate National Regulations
(Standards) of Accounting in Ukraine have been complied with.

The financial statements are hereby approved by Management of the Company

M

Chief Accountant LAt S Olena Sidak
¥ S ’/

26 Aptll 2022

Director Franziska May



Company LEGO UKRAINE L1mited Liability Company

Terntory Kyiv

Organisational and legal form of economic activity. Limited Llability Company.

Type of economic aclivity Wholesale trade in other household goods

Average humber of employees ' 19,

Address, telephone _ 1 A, Sportyvna Square, KYIV, 01601

CODES
Dale (year, month, date) | 2021 ] 12 | 31
EDRPOU 36979658
KOATUU 8038900000

KOPFG 240
KVED 46 49

Measurement unit UAH thousand withaut a decimal mark (except for Section IV of the Statement of Financial Resulls (Statement of
Comprehensive Income) (Form 2), where amounts are stated in Ukrainian hryvnias with kapecks)

Prepared (tick the necessary box)

National Regulations (Standards) of Accounting in Ukraine

International Financial Reporting Standards

Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position)

as at 31 December 2021

Form 1 DKUD Code 1801001
At the beain- o4 0 end of
ASSETS Other Line r:;'(‘]gu"rf ;';ee_ the reporting
viod pertad
1 2 3 4
I. Non-current assets
Intangible assels 1000 - N
historical cost 1001 - -
accumulated amortisation 1002 - -
Capital Investments in progress 1005 1,685 288
Praperty, plant and equipment 1010 16,6564 13,602
historical cost 1011 21,334 23,439
accumulated depreciation 1012 4,680 9,837
Investment property 1015 - -
Long-term biological assels 1020 - -
Long-term finangcial investments
accounted for according to the equity method 1030 - -
other financial Investments 1036 - -
|_ong-term accounts recelvable 1040 - -
Deferred tax assets 1045 9,220 13,634
Other hon-current assets 1090 - -
Total Section | 1095 27,559 27,524
Il. Current assets

Inventories 1100 3,476 3,301
Production stock 1101 95 -
Work In progress 1102 3,016 1,786
Finished goods 1103 - -
Goods for resale 1104 366 1,616
Current biological assets 1110 - -
Accounts receivable for goods, works and services 1126 186,978 214,913

Accounts receivable on settlements.
on advances issuad 1430 8,625 15,660
with the budget 1135 26 -
including income tax 1136 - -
Other current accounts receivable 1158 15 -
Current financial Investments 1160 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1165 69,648 80,936
Cash on hand 1166 - -
Bank accounts 1167 69,548 90,936
Deferred expenses 1170 284 186
Other current assets 1190 549 241
Total Section |l 1195 269,411 325,137
il Non-current assets held for sale and dlsposal groups 1200 - -
BALANCE 1300 296,970 352,661

Accounling policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 48 form an Integral part of these

financial statements




Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position)
as at 31 December 2021

Form 1
(continued)
Line At the begin- | At the end of
LIABILITIES Other notes code |Mn@ of the re-) the reporting
porting pettod pertod
1 2 3 4
1 Equity
Registered (share) capital 3 1400 1,700 1,700
Revaluation reserve 1405 - -
Additional capital 1410 642 141
Reserve capttal 1416 - -
Retalned earnings (accumulated deflcit) 1420 106,397 91,367
Unpaid capital 1425 - -
Withdrawn capltal 1430 - -
Total Sectlon | 1495 108,739 93,208
1. Long-term liabilities and provistons
Deferred tax §abilities 1500 - ~
Long-term bank loans 15610 - -
Other long-term liabllities 15615 - -
Long-term provislons 1620 - -
Speaial-purpose financing 1525 - -
Total Section Il 1595 - -
1ll, Gurrent llabilities and provisions

Short-term bank loans 1600 - -

Current accounts payable for
long-term Nabilities 1610 - -
goods, works and services 4 16156 128,695 171,447
settlements with the budget 5 1620 3,224 11,410
including income tax 1621 584 7,750
seltlements on Insurance 1625 - -
setlements on payroll 1630 11 -
Current accounts payable on advances recelved 1636 - -
Current provisions 1660 53,4568 75,586
Deferred iIncome 1665 - -
Other current habihties 6 1690 2,843 1,010
Total Section 1l 1695 188,231 259,453

IV, Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for

sale and disposal groups 1700 - -
V. Net value of assets of non-state pension fund 1800 - -
BALANCE 1900 296,970 352,661

Director

Chief Accountant

Franziska May

Olena Sidak

! Determined according to the procedure established by the central executive body responsible for implementation of the state statls-

tics pohcy

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an Integral part of these
financial statements




Codes
Date (year, month, dale) 2021 [12 [ &1
Company LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liabiity Company EDRPOU 36979658
(name)
Statement of Financial Results (Statement of Comprehensive Income)
for the year ended 31 Decemher 2021
Form 2 DKUD Gode

I. Financial results

For the re- | For the similar
item Other notes é‘:&‘; porting peariod of the
period prior yeat
1 2 3 4

Nel revenue from sales of goods, works and services 2000 707,779 542,398
Cost of sales of goads, works and services 2060 (436,480) (878,858)
Gross:
Profit 2090 271,299 163,540
Loss 2095 (-) ()
Other operating income 2120 701 1,210
Administralive expenses 2130 (22,001) (19,455)
Selling expenses 2160 {198,306) (107,081)
Other operating expenses 2180 (15,112) (10,199)
Financial resuits from operating activities:
Profit 2180 36,581 28,015
Loss 2196 - -
Income from participation In equity 2200 - -
Other financlal income 2220 - -
Other income 2240 - -
Financial expenses 2250 {-) {(-)
Losses from participation In equity 2255 (-) (-)
Other expenses 2270 (-) (259)
Financial results before taxation,
Profit 2290 36,581 27,766
Loss 2295
Income tax expense/(benefit) 8 2300 6,610 4,879
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations after tax 2305 - -
Net financial resujt'
Profit 2350 29,971 22,877
Loss 2355 (-) {-)

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 —~ 32 and other notes on pages 33 ~ 49 form an Integral part of these
financial statements



Statement of Financial Results (Statement of Comprehensive Income)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 2

{continuad)

Il. Comprehensive income

Far the re- | For the similar
ftem Other notes | Line code| porting period
period |of the prior year|
1 2 3 4
Upward (downward) revaluation of non-current assets 2400 - -
Upward (downward) revaluation of financial instruments 2405 - -
Acoumulated exchange differences 2410 - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates and jolnt ventures 2415 . .
Other comprehensive iIncome 2446 - -
Other comprehensive income before tax 2450 - -
Income tax related to other comprehansive income 2455 - -
Other comprehensive Income after tax 2460 - -
Comprehensive income (total of lines 2350, 2355 and 2460) 2465 29,971 22,877
lil. Elements of operating expenses
Lime For the re- | For the similar
tem Other notes porting pe-~ | period of the
code
riod prior year
1 2 3 4
Material costs 2600 29,202 19,686
Payroli 2506 18,356 13,913
Social contributions 2510 2,964 2,073
Depreciation/amortisation 2515 5,473 3,374
Other operating expenses 2620 179,724 97,948
Total 2550 235,419 136,994
IV. Calculation of earnings per share
Line For the re- | For the similar
tem Other notes poriing pe- | penod of the
code
riod prior year
1 2 3 4
Average annual number of ordinary shares 2600 - -
Average annual number of ordinary shares, adjusted 2605 - -
Net earnings (loss) per ordinary share 2610 - -
Net earnings (loss) per ordinary share, adjusted 2616 - -
Dividends per ordinaty share 2650 - -

Note Section IV. Calculation of earnings per share has not been completed as the Company Is established

as a limited labllity company and does not have shares.

Directar f /(/e ¢

i1
Chief Accountant /*f f

Franziska May

Olena Sidak

Accounting pollcies staled on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 ~ 49 form an Integral part of these
financlal statements




Codes
Date (year, month, date) 20211 12 [ 31
Company LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company EDRPOU 36979658
(name)
Statement of Cash Flows (direct method)
for the year ended 31 December 2021
Form 3 DKUD Code
ltem Other notes| Line For the re~ For the simllar
code porting pe-~ period of the
riod prior year
1 2 3 4
I. Cash flows from operating activities
Recelpts from
Sales of goods, works and services 3000 812,103 620,705
Return of taxes and levies 3006 - -
Including value added tax 3006 - -
Special-purposs financing 3010 - -
Recelpt of advances from purchasers and customers 3015 - -
Returns of advanoces pald 3020 - -
Praceads from interest on current account balances 3025 - -
Recelpts from debtors of forfelt (fines and penalties) 3035 - -
Recelpts from operating lease 3040 - -
Receipts from royalty 3046 - -
Recelpt of Insurance procesads 3060 - -
Receipts of financial institutions from repayment of borrowings 3085 ~ -
Other receipts 3095 - -
Qutflows from payments for,
Goods, works and services 3100 (676,621) (661,863)
Payroll 3105 (14,915) (10,965)
Sacial payments 3110 (3,206) (2,237)
Taxes and levles paid 3115 (32,318) (20,129)
jncome tax paid 3116 (3,868) (12,596)
Value added tax paid 3117 (21,446) (4,117}
Other {axes and levies paid 3118 (7,014) (3,416)
Advances pald 3136 (15,560 (8 525)
Expenditure for return of advances 3140 - -
Spectal-purpose contributlons 3145 - -
Expenditure for payments for habilities on Insurance contracts 3160 - -
Expenditure of financial institutions for tasue of borrowings 3155 - -
Other expenditures 3190 (2,943 (1,182)
Cash flows from operating activities, net 3195 66,641 15,814
Il. Cash flows from mvesting activities

Receipts from sale of
financial Investments 3200 - -
non-cutrent assets 3206 - -
Recelpts from
interest recelved 32186 - -
dividends received 3220 - -
Recelpts from derivatives 3225 - -
Other receipts 3250 - -
Expenditure for purchases of
financtal investments 3285 - -
non-current assets 3260 (2,393) (13,723)
Payments on derivalives 3270 - -
Other payments 3290 - -
Cash flows from Investing actlvities, net 3295 (2,393) (13,723)

Accounting policles stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an Integral part of these
financtal statements



Statement of Cash Flows (direct method)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 3
(continued)
Item Other notes| Llne For the re- For the similar
code porting pe- period of the
riod prior yeat
1 2 3 4
lll. Cash flows from financing actlvities
Recelpls from
Equity 3300 - -
Loans recelved 3306 - -
Recelpis from sale of interest in a subsldlary 3310 - -
Other receipts 3340 - -
Expenditure for'
Repurchase of treasury shares 3345 -
L.oans repayment 3360 - -
Dividends payment 3355 (42,750) -
Interest payment 3360 - -
Financial lease liabihty payment 3365 - -
Expanditure for purchase of Interest in a subsidiary 3370 - -
Expenditure for payment to hon-controlling Interest In a subsidiary 3376 - -
Other payments 3390 - -
Cash flows from financing activities, net 3395 (42,750) -
Cash flows for the reporting period, net 3400 21,498 2,091
Cash at the beginning of the year 3405 69,548 67,321
Effect of changes in exchange rales on cash balances 3410 (110) 136
Cash at the end of the year 3415 490,936 69,548
Director . Franzlska May
Chief Accountant Olena Sidak

Accounting polloies stated on pages 24 —~ 82 and othe) notes on pages 33 — 49 form an Integral part of thesa
financial statements



Codes

Date (year, month, date) 2021 [ 12 131
Company LEGO UKRAINE Lunited Liability Company EDRPOU 36979658
{name)
Statement of Shareholders’ Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2021
Form 4 DKUD Cede
Retalned
Registered |Revalua-| Addi- With-
Item Line [(share) capi-| tion re- | tional R;?p?gf e:;:lr::‘nug{:&c- g:&?ﬁ drawn Total
tal serve | capltal d capital
eficit)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Balance at the beginning of the year | 4000 1,700 - 642 - 106,397 - - | 108,739
Adjustments
Change in accounting policles 4005 - - - - - - - -
Correction of errors 4010 - - - - - - .
Other changes 4090 - - - - (1) - - (1)
Balance at the beginning of the year,
adjusted 4095 1,700 - 642 - 106,396 - - | 108,738
Net profit/(loss) for the reporting pe-
riod 4100 - - - - 29,971 - - 29,971
Other comprehensive income for the
reporting period 4110 - - - - - - - -
Profit distribution
Payments to the owners (dividends) 4200 - - - - (45,000) - - | (45,000)
Allocation to the reglstered capital 4206 - - - - - - - -
Allocation {o the reserve capttal 4210 - - - - - - - -
Contributions by owners’
Capial contributions 4240 - - - - - - - -
Repayment of unpaid capital 4246 - - - - - - - -
Withdrawal of capital®
Repurchase of shares 4260 - - - - - - - -
Sale of reasury shares 4265 - - - - - -1 - -
Cancellation of treasury shares 4270 - - - - - - - -
Withdrawal of the share in equlty 4275 - - - - - - - -
Other changes In equity 4290 - - | (501) - - - - (501)
Changes In equity, total 4295 - - (501) - (15,029) - - | (15,530)
Balance at the end of the year 4300 1,700 -~ 141 - 91,367 - - { 93,208
Director Franziska May
Chief Accountant Olena Sldak

Accounting policles stated on pages 24 — 32 and ofher notes on pages 33 — 49 form an Integral part of these
financial statements
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Company: LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company

Territory: Kyiv
State authority:

Form of ownership: Limited Liability Company
Type of economic activity: Wholesale trade in other household goods

Measurement unit: UAH thousands

Date (year, month, date)
EDRPOU

KOATUU

SPODU
KOPFG
KVED

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5

I. Intangible assets

DKUD Code |

2021 [ 12 [ 31

36979658

8038900000

240

46.49

1801008

Balance at the be- Revaluation (upward +, . . Other changes for the Balance at the end of the
L Disposals in the year
ginning of the year downward -) s year year
. ", . Amortisation .
. . Line accumu- |[Additions in Impairment losses
Groups of intangible assets charges for
code | costor lated the year | cost or val- | accumulated cost or accumulated the year for the year cost or valu-|accumulated|cost or valu-| accumulated
valuation |amortisa- uation amortisation valuation amortisation ation amortisation ation amortisation
tion
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 12 13 14 15
Rights to use natural resources 010 i i i i i i i i i i i i
Rights to use property 020 3 - 3 3 - 3 3 - - 3 - 3
Rights for commercial signs 030 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Rights for the industrial property
objects 040 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Copyright and allied rights 050 - - - - - - - - - - - -
060 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other intangible assets 070 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total 080 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Goodwill 090 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Item Line code Amount
1 2 3
From line 080, col. 14
cost of intangible assets with restricted ownership rights 081 B
cost of pledged intangible assets 082 -
cost of intangible assets created in-house 083 B
From line 080, col. 5, cost of intangible assets received for targeted financing 084 B
From line 080, col. 15, accumulated amortisation of intangible assets with restricted ownership rights 085 E

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these
financial statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5
(continued)

Il. Property, plant and equipment

Balance at the be- Revaluation (up- Disposals in the Other changes for|Balance at the end of - _Includlng.
) ginning of the year ward +, year the year the year Received on fi- Transf(_erred on operat-
Groups of property, plant and equipment downward -) Deprec’n Impair- nance lease ing lease
Line Addi- accu- accu- | charges ment .
accumu-| tions in mu- mu- | Gore | 1osses for aceu accu-
code cost or |lated de-| the year | cost or val- | lated | costor | lated oreare the year | costor mu- costor |3CCUMU-| . stor |mulated| costor | _2¢SUmu-
valuation | precia- uation de- |valuation [depre- y y valuation dlated valuation Iateq d_e- valuation |depreci-| valuation Iate(_i c!epre-
tion preci- cia- epre- preciation ation ciation
ation tion ciation
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
Land plots 100 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Investment property 105 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital costs of land improvements 110 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Buildings, constructions and transmission
equipment 120 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Machinery and equipment 130 1,083 703 291 - - 16 16 466 - - 1,358 1,153 - - -
Vehicles 140 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Tools, fittings and furniture 150 7,719 1,947 1,369 - - - - 1,999 - - 9,088 3,946 - - -
Livestock 160 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Perennial plants 170 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other fixed assets 180 11,846 1,344 - - - - - 2,247 - - 11,846 3,591 - - -
Library assets 190 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Non-current low-value items 200 686 686 461 - - - - 461 - - 1,147 1,147 - - -
Temporary buildings 210 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Natural resources 220 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Packaging 230 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Hire items 240 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other non-current tangible assets 250 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total 260 21,334 4,680 2121 - - 16 16 5,173 - - 23,439 9,837 - - -
Item Other notes Line code Amount
From line 260, col. 14 cost of PPE where legal restrictions of ownership rights exist 261 -
cost of pledged PPE 262 -
residual value of PPE out of use on a temporary basis (conservation, reconstruction, etc.) 263 -
cost (or valuation) of fully depreciated PPE 264 -
PPE of rented integrated property complex 2641 -
From line 260, col. 8 residual value of PPE decommissioned for future sale 265 -
residual value of fixed assets lost due to accidents 2651 -
From line 260, col. 5 cost of PPE purchased for targeted finance 266 -
ICost of PPE received on operating lease terms 267 16,401
From line 260, col. 15 | accumulated depreciation of fixed assets where legal restrictions of ownership rights exist 268 -
From line 105, col. 14 |cost of investment property valued at fair value 269 -

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these
financial statements

12




Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5
(continued

)

11l. Capital investments

Line
Item code For the year At year end
1 2 3 4
Capital construction 280 - -
Purchase (manufacturing) of PPE 290 1,397 288
Purchase (manufacturing) of other non-current tangible assets 300 - -
Purchase (manufacturing) of intangible assets 310 - -
Purchase (growing) of long-term biological assets 320 - -
Other 330 - -
Total 340 1,397 288
From line 340, col. 3
capital investments in investment property (341)
financial costs included in capital investments (342)
IV. Financial investments
Item Llr';e For the year At year end
code Long-term Current
1 2 3 4 5
A. Financial investments under equity method into:
associates 350 - - -
subsidiaries 360 - - -
joint activities 370 - - -
B. Other financial investments into:
shares in other entities’ statutory capital 380 - - -
shares 390 - - -
bonds 400 - - -
other 410 - - -
Total (A + B) 420 - - -
From line 1035, col. 4 of the Balance Sheet Other long-term financial investments stated:
(Statement of Financial Position) at cost (421)
at fair value (422)
at amortised cost (423)
From line 1160, col. 4 of the Balance Sheet Current financial investments stated:
(Statement of Financial Position) at cost (424)
at fair value (425)
at amortised cost (426)

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these
financial statements

13



Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5
(continued)

V. Income and expenses

Other Line
Item Income Expenses
notes code
1 2 3 4
A. Other operating income and expenses
Operating lease of assets 440 - -
Operating exchange difference 450 701 724
Sale of other current assets 460 - -
Fines, penalties and interest 470 - -
Maintenance of social assets 480 - -
Other operating income and expenses 490 - 14,388
including:
charges to bad debt provision 491 - 1,917
non-productive expenses and losses 492 - -
B. Income and expenses from participation in equity of:
associates 500 - -
subsidiaries 510 - -
joint activities 520 - -
C. Other financial income and expenses
Dividends 530 - -
Interest 540 - -
Finance lease of assets 550 - -
Other financial income and expenses 560 - -
D. Other income and expenses
Sale of financial investments 570 - -
Income from business combinations 580 - -
Result of impairment test 590 - -
Non-operating exchange difference 600 - -
Assets received free of charge 610 - -
Write-off of non-current assets 620 - -
Other income and expenses 630 - -
Item Line Amount
code
1 2 3
Barter transactions with goods, works and services 631 -
Share in sales revenue from sales of goods, works and services under barter agreements with
related parties (%) 632 -
From lines 540-560 col. 4: Financial costs included in cost of assets 633 -

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these

financial statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5
(continued)

VI. Cash
Item Line code At year end
1 2 3
Cash on hand 640 -
Current account 650 90,822
Other bank accounts (letters of credit, cheque books) 660 114
Cash in transit 670 -
Cash equivalents 680 -
Total 690 90,936
From line 1090, col. 4 of the Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) Cash
with restricted use 691 -
VII. Provisions
Increase during the re- Amount of ex-
t d Unused
porting period pected com-
Balance at amount re- . Balance
. . L Amount pensation by
Type of provision Line | the begin- . versed at the
r - . used during . the other party
code |ning of the| Provision | Additional during the | . i end of
ear ted h the year reportin included in the the vear
y create charges porting provision as- y
period
sessment
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Provision for vacation pay-
ments to employees 710 1,068 1,722 - 1,679 - - 1,111
Provision for additional fu-
ture pension expenses 720 B _ - R - - -
Provision for future ex-
penses related to guaran-
tees 730 - - - - - - -
Provision for future restruc-
turing expenses 740 - - - - - - -
Provision for future ex-
penses related to onerous
contracts 750 - - - - - - -
Provision for bonuses pay-
able 760 2,046 3,688 - 1,888 - - 3,846
Other provisions 770 50,344 69,024 - 48,739 - -| 70,629
Doubtful debt provision 775 - 1,917 - - - - 1,917
Total 780 53,458 76,351 - 52,306 - -| 77,503

‘Other provisions’ include the provision for incurred expenses for which documents have not yet been received

from suppliers.

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these

financial statements

15



Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5
(continued)

VIII. Inventories

. . Revaluation in the year
Item Line |~ Closing book Increase in the net |Downward revalua-
code value 4 y
realisable value* tion

1 2 3 4 5
Raw and other materials 800 - - -
Purchased components and units 810 - - -
Fuel 820 - - -
Packaging 830 - - -
Construction materials 840 - - -
Spare parts 850 - - -
Agricultural materials 860 - - -
Current biological assets 870 - - -
Low-value items 880 - - -
Work in progress 890 1,786 - -
Finished products 900 - - -
Goods for sale 910 1,515 - -
Total 920 3,301 - -

From line 920, col. 3

Book value of inventories:

shown at net realisable value

transferred for processing
pledged

transferred on commission

Assets on safekeeping (off-balance sheet account 02)

From line 1200, col. 4 of the Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) Invento-

ries held for sale

* Determined according to p. 28 of NR(S)AU 9 “Inventories”

Other notes
(921)
(922)
(923)
(924)
(925)

(926)

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these
financial statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5
(continued)

IX. Accounts receivable

Including outstanding by age:
Line | Total at year-
Item d d
code en Less than 12 |From 12to 18 |From 18 to 36
months months months
1 2 3 4 5 6
Accounts receivable for goods, works and ser-
vices 940 214,913 214,913 - -
Other current accounts receivable 950 - - - -
Bad accounts receivable written-off during the reporting year (951) -
From lines 940 and 950 accounts receivable with related parties (952) -
X. Losses and shortages resulting from damages
Item Line Amount
code
1 2 3
Losses and shortages identified and written-off during the year 960 -
Recognised as debts of the guilty parties during the year 970 -
Losses and shortages where guilty parties are not identified at year end (off-balance sheet account
072) 980 -
XI. Construction contracts
Item Line Amount
code
1 2 3

Revenue from construction contracts for current year 1110 -
IAmounts outstanding at year end:

from customers, gross 1120 -

to customers, gross 1130 -

on prepayments received 1140 -
Overdue amounts at year end 1150 -
Cost of work done by subcontractors for construction contracts in progress 1160 -

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these

financial statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5
(continued)

XIl. Income tax

Item L‘;Z: Amount
1 2 3

Current corporate profit tax 1210 11,024
Deferred tax assets:

at the beginning of year 1220 9,220

at the end of year 1225 13,634
Deferred tax liabilities:

at the beginning of year 1230 -

at the end of year 1235 -
Included in the Statement of Financial Results — total 1240 6,610
including:

current corporate profit tax 1241 11,024

decrease (increase) of deferred tax assets 1242 (4,414)

increase (decrease) of deferred tax liabilities 1243 -
Recorded in equity — total 1250 -
including:

current corporate profit tax 1251 -

decrease (increase) of deferred tax assets 1252 -

increase (decrease) of deferred tax liabilities 1253 -

XIll. Use of depreciation charge
Item é‘:&i Amount
1 2 3

Depreciation charge for the year 1300 5173
Used during the year — total 1310 -
Including for:

construction of units 1311 -

purchasing (manufacturing) and improvements of PPE 1312 -

including machines and equipment 1313 -

purchasing (manufacturing) of intangible assets 1314 -

paying off loans received for capital investments 1315 -

1316 -
1317 -

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these

financial statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5

(continued)

XIV. Biological assets

Recorded at cost

Recorded at fair value

Opening balance Disposals in the year | Deprecia- Economic| Closing balance .
Groups of biological assets Line accumu- | Additions accumu- tion Impair- | benefits aceumu- | o0 ing| | Addi- C?na?::fs Dlzrl)sos- Closin
code | histori- . historical charges ment  from recovihistorical lated de-| =" 9| tions in . 9
lated de- | in the year lated depre- . balance value for| inthe [balance
cal cost reciation cost ciation for the losses |eryofas-| cost preci- the year the vear ear
p year sets ation Y Y
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
Long-term biological assets —
total
including: 1410 - - - - - - - - - - - -
draft livestock 1411 - - - - - - - - - - - -
productive livestock 1412 - - - - - - - - - - - -
perennial plants 1413 - - - - - - - - - - - -
1414 - - - - - - - - - - - -
other long-term biological assets 1415 - - - - N - - - i i i i
Current biological assets —
total
including: 1420 - X X X - - X - - - - -
livestock 1421 - X X X - - X - - - - -
biological assets in bioconversion
(other than livestock) 1422 - X X X N - X - . . . -
1423 - X X X - - X - - - - -
other current biological assets 1424 - X X X N - X - . . . -
Total 1430 - - - - N - - - - - i -
From line 1430, col. 5 and col. 14: cost of biological assets purchased for targeted finance (1431) -
residual value of non-current biological assets, historical cost of current biological assets and fair value of biological assets lost due to emer-
From line 1430, col. 6 and col. 16: gency events (1432) -
From line 1430, col. 11 and col. 17: book value of biological assets with restricted ownership rights as prescribed by law (1433)

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these
financial statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form 5
(continued)

XV. Financial results from initial recognition and sale of agricultural produce and additional biological assets

Value at Result from initial recog- | Down- Financial result (profit +, loss -)
It . initial Bioconversion ex- nition ward from
em Line code . Revenue [ost of sales A :
recogni- penses income ex- rev_alu- sales |r_1|t|a| recogni-
tion pense ation tion and sales
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Plant cultivation produce and additional biological
jassets — total 1500 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
including: - - - -
crops and leguminous plants 1510 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
lof which:
wheat 1511 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
lsoybean 1512 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
isunflower 1513 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
rapeseed 1514 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
sugar beet (mill) 1515 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
potatoes 1516 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
fruit (pip and drupaceous fruit) 1517 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
lother plant cultivation produce 1518 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
plant cultivation additional biological assets 1519 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
Cattle breeding produce and additional biological 1520 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
including: - - - -
live weight gain — total 1530 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
lof which:
horned livestock 1531 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
pigs 1532 (=) - (=) - - (=) -
imilk 1533 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
wool 1534 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
eags 1535 (=) - (=) - - (=) -
lother cattle breeding produce 1536 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
cattle breeding additional biological assets 1537 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
fishery produce 1538 (-) - (-) - - (-) -
1539 (-) - (=) - - (-) -
IAgricultural produce and additional biological as-
isets — total 1540 (-) - (-) - - (-) -

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these
financial statements
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Codes
Date (year, month, date) 2021 [ 12 [ 31

Company: LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company EDRPOU 36979658

Territory: Kyiv KOATUU 8038200000

State authority: SPODU

Form of ownership: Limited Liability Company KOPFG 240

Type of economic activity: Wholesale trade in other household goods KVED 43.29

Measurement unit: UAH thousands Control amount

Supplement to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements “Segment Information”
for the year ended 31 December 2021
Form 6 DKUD code 1801009 |
I. Figures by priority reporting business segment
Reporting segment name
. Unallocated Total
Item Line code Sales of toys
Reporting year Prior year Reporting year Prior year Reporting year Prior year Reporting year Prior year Reporting year Prior year
1 2 3 4 5 6 13 14 15 16 17 18

1. Revenues of reporting segments:
Revenues of reporting segments from operating activity 010 697,274 534,093 - - - 697,274 534,093
of which:
revenue from sales of goods, works and services:
to external customers 011 696,573 532,883 - - - 696,573 532,883
to other reporting segments 012 - - - - - - -
other operating income 013 701 1,210 - - - 701 1,210
Financial income of reporting segments 020 - - - - - - -
of which:
income from participation in equity directly attributable to the reporting
segment 021 - - - - - - -
other financial income 022 - - - - - - -
Other income 030 - - - - - - -
Total income of reporting segments 040 697,274 534,093 - - - 697,274 534,093
Unallocated income 050 X X X 11,206 9,515 11,206 9,515
of which:
income from operations 051 X X X - - - -
financial income 052 X X X - - - -
Deductions from revenues from sale of goods, works and services to
other reporting segments 060 - - - - - - -
Total revenue of the entity i#{(line 040 + line 050 - line 060) 070 697,274 534,093 - 11,206 9,515 708,480 543,608
2. Expenses of reporting segments:
Operating expenses 080 (436,480) (378,858) - - - (436,480) (378,858)
of which:
cost of sales of goods, works and services:
to external customers 081 (436,480) (378,858) - - - (436,480) (378,858)
to other reporting segments 082 - - - - - - -
Administrative expenses 090 (22,001) (19,455) - - - (22,001) (19,455)
Selling expenses 100 (198,306) (107,081) - - - (198,306) (107,081)
Other operating expenses 110 (15,112) (10,199) - - - (15,112) (10,199)

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these

financial statements
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Supplement to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements “Segment Information”
Form No 6 (continued)
Figures by priority reporting business segment (continued)

Reporting segment name

Unallocated

Total

Sales of toys

Provision of services

Item Line code -
Reporting year Prior year Reporting year | Prior year Res:::ng Prior year Reporting year Prior year Reporting year Prior year

Financial expenses of reporting segments 120 - - - - - - - - - -
of which:

losses from participation in equity directly attributable to the reporting segment 121 - - - - - - - - - -
Other expenses 130 - - - - - - - (259) - (259)
Total expenses of reporting segments 140 (671,899) (515,593) - - - - - (259) (671,899) (515,852)
Unallocated expenses 150 X X X X X X X
of which:

administrative, selling and other operating expenses unallocated to reporting

segments 151 X X X X X X X X X X
financial expenses 152 X X X X X X X X X X
extraordinary expenses 153 X X X X X X X X X X
income tax 154 (6,610) (4,879) X X X X X X (6,610) (4,879)
Deductions from cost of sales of goods, work and services to other reporting

segments 160 - - - -
Total expenses of the entity itei(line 140 + line 150 -line 160) 170 (678,509) (520,472) - - - - - (259) (678,509) (520,731)
3. Financial result of reporting segments (line 040 - line 140) 180 29,971 22,877 - - - - - - 29,971 22,877
4. Financial result of the entityit{(line 070 - line 170) 190 29,971 22,877 - - - - - - 29,971 22,877
5. Assets of reporting segments 200 352,661 296,970 - - - - - - 352,661 296,970
of which:

Intangible assets 201 - - - - - - - - - -
Capital investments in progress 202 288 1,685 - - - - - - 288 1,685

Property, plant and equipment 203 13,602 16,654 - - - - - - 13,602 16,654

Inventories 204 3,301 3,476 - - - - - - 3,301 3,476

Accounts receivable for goods, works and services 205 214,913 186,978 - - - - - - 214,913 186,978

Accounts receivable on settlements on advances issued 206 15,560 8,525 - - - - - - 15,560 8,525

Other current accounts receivable 207 - 15 - - - - - - - 15

Cash and cash equivalents 208 90,936 69,548 - - - - - - 90,936 69,548

Deferred expenses 209 186 294 - - - - - - 186 294

Other non-current assets 210 13,875 9,769 - - - - - - 13,875 9,769
Unallocated assets 220 - 26 X X X X - - - 26
of which:

Accounts receivable on settlements with the budget 221 - 26 X X X X - - - 26
Total assets of the entity 230 352,661 296,970 - - - - - - 352,661 296,970
6. Liabilities of reporting segments 240 248,043 185,007 - - - - - - 248,043 185,007
of which:

Current accounts payable for goods, works and services 241 171,447 128,695 - - - - - - 171,447 128,695

Current accounts payable on settlements on insurance 242 - - - - - - - - - -

Current accounts payable on payroll 243 - 11 - - - - - - - 11

Current provisions 244 75,586 53,458 - - - - - - 75,586 53,458

Other current provisions 245 1,010 2,843 - - - - - - 1,010 2,843
Unallocated liabilities 260 11,410 3,224 X X X X - - 11,410 3,224
of which:

Current accounts payable on settlements with the budget 261 11,410 3,224 X X X X - - 11,410 3,224
Total liabilities of the entity (line 240 + line 260) 270 259,453 188,231 - - - - - - 259,453 188,231
7. Capital investments 280 - - - - - - - - - -
8. Depreciation of non-current assets 290 5,173 3,374 - - - - - - 5173 3,374

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 — 49 form an integral part of these

financial statements
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Supplement to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements “Segment Information”
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Form No 6 {continued}

1I. Figures by secondary reporting geographical sales segment

Reporting segment name

Unallocated Total
Itern ;22
Reypec;r:rng Prior year Reyp;c;rgng Prior year Rey;z:arfng Prior year Re;:ar:mg Prior year R?ezr‘t'mg Prior year
1 2 3 4 5 6 13 14 15 16 17 18

Revenue from sales of goods, works and services
to external customers 300 - - - - - - - -
Carrying value of reporting segment assets 310 - - - - - - - -
Capital Investments 320 - - - - - - - -

330 - - - - - - - -

340 - - - - - - - ~

Ill. Figures by secondary reporting geographical productive segment
Reporting segment name Unallocated Total
tem L"ée
code R?;;Eng Prior year Re;):arfng Prior year Reyp: ;‘ " | pror year R?:;mg Prior year R?;;ng T Prior year
1 2 3 4 5 6 13 14 15 16 7 1 18

Revenue from sales of goods, works and services 350 1
to external customers - - - - - - - -
Carrying value of reporting segment assets 360 - - - - - - - -
Capital investments 370 - - - - - - - -

380 - e - - - - - N

Director

Chief Accountant

390

=

Accounting policies stated on pages 24 — 32 and other notes on pages 33 —49 form an integral part of these

financial statements
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LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company
Financial Statements in accordance with NR(S)AU as at and for the year ended
31 December 2021

Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

1. Basis of preparation

The Company keeps its accounting records and prepares financial statements according to Ukrainian
legislation in Ukrainian currency, hryvnia, in compliance with the Law of Ukraine On Accounting and
Reporting in Ukraine dated 16 July 1999 No 996-XIV (as amended) and in accordance with National
Regulations (Standards) of Accounting in Ukraine (“NR(S)AU”). The accompanying financial statements
are based on accounting records kept according to Ukrainian legislation, which requires the historical
cost convention to be adopted.

As stated in Note “Other Notes to the Financial Statements” namely in section “Operating environment
of the Company”, russia started a whole-scale invasion in the territory of Ukraine that had a significant
negative impact on the economy of Ukraine and the Company's operations. Nevertheless, the Company
expects for easing of import restrictions in the nearest future and renewal of sales on the territory of
Ukraine where no hostilities are conducted, given that as at the date of these financial statements the
Company observes a stable demand from clients in the renewal of sales. In addition, the Company has
sufficient liquidity and in case of absolute necessity, expects to rely on financial aid from the parent
company. Based on the abovementioned, management of the Company prepared these financial state-
ments on the going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements according to NR(S)AU requires from management certain ac-
counting estimates. Management also uses certain judgements in applying accounting policies. The
actual results may differ from the estimates.

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with NR(S)AU effective as at 31 Decem-
ber 2021.

2. Reporting currency
These financial statements are stated in the national currency of Ukraine, hryvnia (UAH).
3. Foreign currency transactions

The Company’s transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate of the National
Bank of Ukraine prevailing at the date of transaction. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of financial results. Such balances are translated at the ex-
change rates effective as at the end of the reporting period.

Accounting for foreign currency transactions is maintained by currency:
e transaction currency;
e reporting currency.

Upon initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are stated at the reporting currency by translating
foreign currency-denominated balances using the opening exchange rate on the date of the transaction
(the date of recognition of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses).

Foreign currency-denominated advances (prepayments) issued to other parties against payments for
purchases of non-monetary assets (inventories, PPE items, intangible assets, etc.) and receipt of works
and services are translated, when included in the cost of those assets (works and services), to the
reporting currency using the opening exchange rate on the date of the advance payment.

When foreign currency-denominated advance payments are issued to suppliers in instalments and non-
monetary assets (works and services) are received from suppliers in instalments, the cost of assets
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LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company
Financial Statements in accordance with NR(S)AU as at and for the year ended
31 December 2021

Accounting policies (continued)
3. Foreign currency transactions (continued)

(works and services) received is recognised at the amount of advance payments using exchange rates
based on a sequence of making advance payments.

Foreign currency-denominated advances (prepayments) received from other parties against payments
for supplies of goods, other assets, performance of works and provision of services are translated, when
included in income of the reporting period, to the reporting currency using the opening exchange rate
on the date of the advance receipt.

When foreign currency-denominated advance payments are initially received from buyers in instalments
and non-monetary assets (works and services) are subsequently delivered to buyers in instalments,
revenue from sales of assets (works and services) is recognised at the amount of advance payments
using exchange rates based on a sequence of receiving advance payments.

The principal rates of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances were as follows:

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
1 USD UAH 27.2782 UAH 28.2746
1 EUR UAH 30.9226 UAH 34.7396

4. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost of purchase. Expenditure on acquired intangible assets is capi-
talised and amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives of
intangible assets are: software — 2 years, other intangible assets — useful lives are estimated individually
depending on the type of the intangible asset (but not more than 10 years).

After writing off intangible assets, their historical cost, along with the corresponding amounts of accu-
mulated amortisation, is eliminated from accounting records.
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset that does not have a tangible form.

An acquired or received intangible asset is recorded on the balance sheet if the Company exercises
control over it, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the
Company and a reliable estimate of the asset can be made.

The following costs are not recognised as assets and are expensed as incurred:

research costs;

staff training and reskilling costs;

advertising and promotion costs;

costs of establishment, reorganisation and relocation of the Company or its part;

costs of enhancement of the Company's business reputation, subscription (purchase) of periodicals
and development of trademarks (brand names).

5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise tangible assets held by the Company to use them in production
or supply of goods or provision of services, to lease them out to other parties or to perform administrative,
social and cultural functions with the estimated useful life of more than one year (or the operating cycle
if it is longer than one year) and the cost exceeding the equivalent of UAH 20,000.

Low-value non-current tangible assets (LVI) include tangible assets intended to be used in business

operations during the period of more than one year after putting them into operation with the cost not
exceeding the equivalent of UAH 20,000.
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LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company
Financial Statements in accordance with NR(S)AU as at and for the year ended
31 December 2021

Accounting policies (continued)
5. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The Company includes tangible assets that meet all of the below criteria in low-value non-current assets:

o the Company intends to use those assets over an extended period of time, which is more than one
year;

e the cost of the assets is less than UAH 20,000.

A PPE item represents a finished facility with all mechanisms and tools related to it; a constructively
isolated item intended to perform certain independent functions; a separated complex of constructively
connected items intended for similar or different purposes, which have common mechanisms, tools,
management and a single base of their service maintenance resulting in each item performing its func-
tions and the complex performing a specific work only as pat of the complex rather than independently;
another asset that meets a PPE definition or its part controlled by the Company.

Cost of PPE items and other non-current tangible assets comprises:

e amounts paid to suppliers of assets and contractors for construction of assets (net of indirect taxes
recoverable from the budget);

e registration fees, state duties and similar charges for purchasing (gaining) rights to a PPE item;

e import duties;

e indirect taxes imposed on purchase (production) of a PPE item (unless they are recoverable to the
Company);

e insurance costs related to asset delivery risk coverage;

e cost of transportation, installation, assembly and setting up of a PPE item;

e other costs directly attributable to bringing PPE items to the condition appropriate for their intended
use.

Cost of assets transferred to PPE items from current assets, goods, materials, etc. equals their historical
cost.

The cost of property, plant and equipment or other non-current tangible assets received free of charge
is equal to their fair values at the time of receipt and is recognised by debiting respective accounts for
property, plant and equipment or other non-current tangible assets with a corresponding credit to Ac-
count 424, Non-current assets received free of charge.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment or other non-current tangible assets acquired in
exchange (partial exchange) for a non-similar item is equal to the fair value of the item transferred in-
creased/decreased by the amount of cash or cash equivalents transferred/received in such exchange.
The cost of property, plant and equipment contributed to the Company’s statutory capital represents
their fair values approved by the Company participants.

The Company applies the following useful lives of property, plant and equipment:

Groups of property, plant and equipment Years
Computer equipment, related playback and printing

devices and computer software 2
Computer network 5
Computer equipment and devices 5
Leasehold improvements term of lease
Buildings 20
Transmission equipment 10
Machinery and equipment 5
Vehicles 5
Tools, fittings and furniture 4
Other fixed assets 12
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LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company
Financial Statements in accordance with NR(S)AU as at and for the year ended
31 December 2021

Accounting policies (continued)
5. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Company recognises property, plant and equipment at cost plus any
improvements less accumulated depreciation and impairment (if any). The Company does not perform
revaluation of its property, plant and equipment at fair value as at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation is charged on a monthly basis. Depreciation is charged starting from the month following
the month when an item of property, plant and equipment has been put into use.

Depreciation is discontinued starting from the month subsequent to the month of asset’s disposal.

Depreciation is suspended for the period of reconstruction, upgrade, extension, reequipment and tem-
porary shutdown of the item of property, plant and equipment.

The depreciation method applied to the item of property, plant and equipment is revised in response to
any changes in expected economic benefits from its use. The new depreciation method is applied start-
ing from the month following the month when the decision to revise the depreciation method has been
made.

Residual value of property, plant and equipment is nil.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their
carrying amount and are taken into account in determining the operating profit.

6. Accounting for leases

Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the
statement of financial results by equal instalments over the period of the lease.

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor to
the lessee are classified as finance leases.

Items of property, plant and equipment subject to operating lease are presented in the Company’s bal-
ance sheet according to the nature of these items. Operating lease income is recognised in other income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Costs, including depreciation, incurred in earning the lease income are recognised as an expense.

The depreciation policy for leased assets is consistent with the Company’s normal depreciation policy
for similar assets.

7. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimate
of the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the cost of completion and selling expenses.

Cost of inventories of finished goods upon disposal is determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
method.

The cost of low-value items, supplementary and repair materials, spare parts and fuel upon disposal is
determined using the specific unit cost method.

The cost of imported inventories includes:

- contractual amounts paid to suppliers (sellers), net of indirect taxes;
- import duties and levies;

- brokerage and terminal fees;

- insurance costs related to such inventories;

- transportation and forwarding services;
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7. Inventories (continued)

- other costs directly attributable to purchases of inventories and bringing them to a condition in which
they are ready for intended use.

8. Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial instruments into the following categories: accounts receivable for
goods, works and services, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable for goods, works and services,
other current accounts receivable and accounts payable.

Financial instruments are initially measured and recognised at actual cost, which comprises the fair
value of assets and liabilities and expenses directly attributable to the acquisition and disposal of a
financial instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to the initial recognition, financial assets are measured at fair
value, except for accounts receivable not for resale, held-to-maturity financial investments, financial as-
sets whose fair value cannot be estimated reliably; financial investments and other financial assets not
measured at fair value.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to the initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost, except for financial liabilities held for resale and liabilities of derivative financial instru-
ments.

The carrying amount of the financial assets which are not measured at fair value is reviewed for impair-
ment at each balance sheet date based on the analysis of the expected cash flows. The loss from
impairment of a financial asset is the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the pre-
sent value of the expected cash flows discounted at the current market interest rate available for similar
financial assets, which is included in other expenses of the reporting period.

9. Accounts receivable and doubtful debts provision

Receivables originated by the Company by selling goods and services directly to the customers are
categorised as receivables not for resale and are initially carried at cost.

Current accounts receivable that represent financial assets (other than acquired receivables and receiv-
ables held for sale) are included in the total balance. Doubtful debts provision is calculated to determine
value as of the balance sheet date.

The Company’s management determines the provision for bad and doubtful debts based on the estimate
of likelihood of bad debts after the performance of a review of the time of debt origination and in compli-
ance with the Company’s practice of writing-off the outstanding amounts as well as other factors, which
influence the outstanding balances.

Doubtful debts provision is determined using the accounts receivable method by reference to the below
estimation rates for each debtor group.

The rates are as follows:

Receivable age in days
% provisioning Lessthan 90 | From 91 to | From 180 to | From 240 to | More than
180 240 365 365
0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

An additional provision may be established based on the management’s decision.

Assessed creditworthiness and estimated doubtful debts provision for the reporting period is presented
within other operating expenses in the statement of financial results.

Bad debts are written off against the related provision.

If the doubtful debts provision is not sufficient, the bad debt is written off from assets against other
operating expenses.
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9. Accounts receivable and doubtful debts provision (continued)

Current accounts receivable not related to sales of products, goods, works and services classified as
bad debts is written off from the balance sheet with a corresponding charge to other operating expenses.

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash with banks, and short-term highly-liquid financial
investments with original maturities of 3 months or less that are easily convertible into known amounts
of cash and are characterised by an insignificant risk of changing the value.

11. Capital

The registered (statutory) capital is the total value of assets contributed to the Company's equity by
owners (participants), which is stated in the constituent documents of the Company.

Additional capital consists of the assets which were provided to the Company by participants free of
charge and were not registered as contribution to the statutory capital of the entity.

12. Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity at the balance sheet date only if they
are declared before or on the balance sheet date. Dividends are disclosed in the other notes when they
are declared after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are authorised for issue.

13. Liabilities

Liabilities are recorded only if a counterparty has performed its contractual obligations or the Company
has signed an irrevocable (onerous) agreement to purchase an asset or a service. Liabilities are initially
recognised and recorded at actual cost. At each balance sheet date subsequent to the initial recognition,
liabilities are measured at amortised cost, except for prepayments received and liabilities on settlements
with the budget, which are carried at historical cost.

14. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is possible that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when employees become entitled to such leave.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave based on the number of days of the
unused annual leave remaining up to the balance sheet date multiplied by the average salary of an
employee for the last 12 months.

Contingent liabilities are not disclosed in the balance sheet. Disclosure of contingent liabilities, their
amounts, any uncertainty in the amounts or maturities of contingent liabilities and amounts expected to
be settled by other parties are disclosed in the supplementary notes to the financial statements.

15. Pension obligations

The Company pays on behalf of its employees unified state social contribution to the Ukrainian State

Pension Fund. The contribution is calculated as a percentage of current gross salary payments and is
expensed as incurred.
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16. Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a
cash-generating unit may be impaired. One of the determining factors in identifying a cash-generating
unit is the ability to measure independent cash flows for that unit.

If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net realisable value or the present value of net cash
inflows from this asset. Irrespective of existence of impairment indicators the Company determines the
expected recoverable amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful life at balance sheet date.

Net realisable value of an asset is based on observable market prices less expected costs to sell. In the
absence of an active market for a particular asset, its net realisable value represents proceeds from
disposal of the asset as at the balance sheet date in an arm's length transaction less any costs to sell.

Present value of future net cash inflows from the asset is determined by applying an appropriate discount
rate to future cash flows from continuous use of the asset and its disposal or write-off at the end of its
useful life. Future cash flows from the asset are assessed based on the Company’s financial projections
over the five-year horizon or less.

The discount rate is based on market interest rate (before tax) used in transactions with similar assets.
Where no market-based interest rate is available, the discount rate is based on interest rates applicable
to the Company’s potential borrowing or determined based on the Company’s weighed average cost of
capital.

Impairment losses on an asset are recognised in other expenses with relevant decrease in its carrying
(residual) value.

17. Corporate profit tax

The charge for taxation in the statement of financial results for the year comprises current tax and
changes in deferred tax. Current tax is determined on the basis of the taxable profit for the year calcu-
lated in accordance with the effective Ukrainian tax legislation using the tax rates effective for the year:
18% in 2021 (2020: 18%). Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability are calculated using the statutory
tax rates applicable for the period when respective asset is expected to be realised or used and respec-
tive liability is expected to be settled.

The deferred tax is calculated under the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax liability is recognised when temporary differences subject to taxation arise. Deferred tax
asset is recognised when deductible temporary differences arise and it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The deferred tax asset as of the balance sheet date is decreased if the taxable income is insufficient to
realise this asset. Previous decreases are reversed to the extent the expected taxable income is suffi-
ciently available, against which the deferred tax asset can be realised.

18. Value added tax (“VAT”)

VAT is levied in Ukraine, where the Company performs the majority of its operations, at such rates: 20%
in the majority of cases on domestic sales and imports of goods, works and services, 7% on domestic
sales and imports of certain groups of goods (pharmaceuticals, medical products, etc.) and 0% on export
of goods and accompanying services. Services provided to be used outside Ukraine are not subject to
VAT.

A taxpayer’s VAT liability equals the total amount of VAT collected within a reporting period, and arises

on the earlier of the date of shipping goods to a customer or the date of receiving payment from the
customer.
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18. Value added tax (“VAT”) (continued)

A VAT credit is the amount that a taxpayer is entitled to offset against VAT liability in a reporting period.
Rights to VAT credit arise when a VAT invoice is received, which is issued on the earlier of the date of
payment to the supplier or the date goods are received.

VAT related to sales and purchases is recognised in the balance sheet on a net basis and disclosed as
an asset or liability in the amount declared in the VAT return. Otherwise VAT is recognised on a gross
basis. Where provision has been made for impairment of receivables, the impairment loss is recorded
for the gross amount of the debtor, including VAT.

19. Revenue and expenses recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods (merchandise, other assets) is recognised when all of the following
conditions are met: risks and rewards associated with ownership of goods (merchandise, other assets)
are transferred to the buyer; the Company retains neither managerial involvement nor effective control
over goods (merchandise, other assets) sold; amount of revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable
that future economic benefits resulting from a transaction will flow to the Company, and expenses as-
sociated with this transaction can be reliably measured.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, unless its receipt is doubtful.

Income from rendering of services is recognised by reference to stage of completion of the specific
transaction as at the balance sheet date if the result of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Expenses are recognised simultaneously with the decrease in assets or increase in liabilities. Expenses
are recognised in the relevant period simultaneously with revenue in respect of which they have been
incurred. Expenses which are not directly attributable to specific revenue items of a particular period are
recognised in the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The following receipts are not recognised as revenue of the Company:

¢ value added tax and other taxes payable to the budget;

prepayments (advances) received against payment for products (goods, works, services);

financial loans, borrowings, returnable financial aid received,

receipts owned by other parties;

advance payments collateralised by security or made against repayment of debt if provided by the
respective agreement;

o other receipts not treated as revenue under the National Regulations (Standards) of Accounting.

Revenues arising from transactions are generally defined by the agreement between the Company and
the buyer or users of assets. Revenues are recognised at the fair value of consideration (compensation)
received or receivable for goods sold or services provided.

As in the majority of cases the amounts of compensation received or receivable are in the form of cash
and cash equivalents, revenues are recognised at the fair value of cash and cash equivalents received
or receivable.

If the fair value is not significantly different from the nominal compensation amount, the Company rec-
ognises the revenue from sales and the accounts receivable at the nominal amount of compensation.

Expenses recognised as period expenses represent either a decrease in assets or an increase in liabil-
ities resulting in a decrease in equity (except for decreases in equity as a result of withdrawal or distri-
bution to owners) provided that these expenses can be reliably measured. Expenses are recognised by
the Company simultaneously with the decrease in assets or increase in liabilities.

The following items are not recognised as expenses and not presented in the statement of financial
results:

e payments under commission, agency and other similar agreements to the consignor, principal, etc.;
e advance payments for inventories, works, services;
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19. Revenue and expenses recognition (continued)

e repayments of loans payable;

e expenses recorded against equity in accordance with National Regulations (Standards) of Account-
ing;
foreign exchange differences;
other decreases in assets or increases in liabilities that do not meet expense recognition criteria.

The cost of goods sold comprises direct material costs, direct labour, variable general production costs,
fixed allocated production costs and other direct costs.

20. Financial expenses

Financial expenses are interest and other borrowing costs. Financial expenses are recognised in the
accounting period when incurred, except when financial expenses are capitalised due to creation of a
qualifying asset. Only the financial expenses which would have been avoided if the qualifying asset had
not been created are capitalised.

21. Comparatives

There were no significant changes in accounting policies during the reporting period.
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements
1. General information

LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company (the “Company”) was established in 2010. The Company's
parent (holding) company is LEGO A/S, Denmark. The ultimate beneficial owner of the Company is a
citizen of Denmark Kjeld Kirk Kristiansen.

The Company’s core business is sales of toys.
2. Operating environment of the Company

A rapid spread of COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic and restrictions introduced to counteract it continued
to determine the situation at global commodity and financial markets during 2021. The macroeconomic
situation during the first months of 2021 facilitated stability of the financial system in Ukraine. Losses
from the quarantine reinforcement in the winter and spring were significantly lower for the country (ap-
proximately 0.6% of GDP) than those of the last year. Businesses in Ukraine adapted to operating in
new realities — arranged a remote work, supply and sale mode.

The National Bank of Ukraine (“NBU”) conducted interest rate policy consistent with inflation targets and
kept floating hryvnia exchange rate. Due to increased energy and fuel prices impacting all sectors of
economy, the inflation rate in Ukraine increased to 10.0% for 2021 (as compared to 5.0% in 2020),
which forced the NBU to start the policy on rate increases after a lengthy period of rate decreases —
from 6.0% effective from June 2020 to 6.5% effective from March 2021, 7.5% effective from April 2021,
8.0% effective from June 2021, 8.5% effective from September 2021, 9.0% effective from December
2021 and further to 10.0% effective from January 2022. As at 31 December 2021 the official NBU ex-
change rate of Hryvnia against EUR was UAH 30.92 per EUR 1, compared to UAH 34.73 per EUR 1 as
at 31 December 2020; the official NBU exchange rate of Hryvnia against USD was UAH 27.28 per USD
1 as at 31 December 2021, compared to UAH 28.27 per USD 1 as at 31 December 2020. The official
average exchange rate of Hryvnia against EUR was UAH 32.3 per EUR 1 for 2021 compared to UAH
30.8 per EUR 1 for 2020; the official average exchange rate of Hryvnia against USD was UAH 27.28
per USD 1 for 2021, compared to UAH 26.96 per USD 1 for 2020.

The conflict in the parts of Donetsk and Luhansk regions, which started in spring 2014, remained unre-
solved. In December 2021 - February 2022, the news about increased concentration of Russian military
forces alongside Russian-Ukrainian border raised concerns about possible open Russian military inter-
vention into Ukraine. On 21 February 2021, recognition of independence of non-controlled territories of
Donetsk and Luhansk regions by Russia was announced, leading to the signing of the so-called co-
operation agreement, which, among other things, includes a provision about potential deployment of
troops on territories uncontrolled by Ukrainian government.

On 24 February 2022, the Russian Federation started an unprovoked full-scale military offensive in
Ukraine. As a result, there is a significant uncertainty about the future state of the economy in Ukraine.
Given the fast-moving nature of the situation and the unpredictability of war, it will likely take time to
assess the economic fallout. For now, the government has prioritised defence and social spending and
remained current on its foreign debt obligations. Companies continue operating to the extent possible
under war conditions and paying taxes and money is still flowing through the financial system.

During March-April 2022, active hostilities continued towards Ukraine’s large cities such as Kharkiv,
Chernihiv, Sumy, Kyiv, Kherson, Zaporizhzhya, Mariupol, Severodonetsk and others, with ongoing mis-
sile strikes on various cities in Ukraine, including Western Ukraine. Tens of thousands of civilians and
military have already died or been injured, a large number of both military and civilian infrastructure
assets demolished, in particular, airports, military bases, residential buildings, hospitals, schools, ware-
houses, production facilities, etc. Operations of all Black Sea and Azov Sea ports have been suspended,
air services were suspended before the beginning of the full-scale invasion, a significant number of
transportation routes in Northern, Southern and Eastern regions have been damaged and rail services
remain the main domestic mode of transportation. In early April, Ukrainian military managed to liberate
a part of previously invaded territories from occupying forces of the aggressor state, namely, Kyiv, Cher-
nihiv and Sumy regions. In its turn, the enemy actively redeploys its forces to Eastern and South-eastern
Ukraine, where the heaviest fighting is expected in the nearest future.
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2. Operating environment of the Company (continued)

In addition, according to the UN, the number of refugees who have left Ukraine during the war has
exceeded 4.5 million people and the number of internally displaced individuals exceeds 7 million people.
Since the beginning of hostilities, the Ukrainian government received financing and donations from in-
ternational organisations and different countries to support financial stability and financing social related
payments and military needs (International Monetary Fund, European Union, and directly from numer-
ous countries). At the beginning of March, the Board of Directors of the European Bank for Reconstruc-
tion and Development (‘EBRD’) has announced an initial resilience package of EUR 2 billion directed
for support of citizens and companies affected by the war in Ukraine and countries directly affected by
inflows of Ukrainian refugees.

The National Bank of Ukraine (‘NBU’) keeps its key policy rate unchanged at 10%. In addition, the NBU
has imposed restrictions regarding cash withdrawals and exchange of hryvnia into foreign currencies
and switched from a flexible to a fixed exchange rate regime at UAH 29.25 for USD 1 on the FX market
to ensure the sound and stable operation of the country’s financial system. As a result, commercial
interbank quotes remain close to the officially imposed by the NBU, with bid rate of UAH 29.25 for USD
1 and the selling rate of UAH 30.30 for USD 1. Moreover, the NBU has imposed a ban on transactions
in Ukraine using the accounts of residents of Russia or Belarus and legal entities whose ultimate bene-
ficial owners are based in these countries. Despite the current unstable situation, the banking system
remains stable, with sufficient liquidity even as martial law continues, all banking services are available
to its customers, both legal entities and individuals.

As of 15 March 2022, Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine passed Law of Ukraine Ne 2120-IX“On amendments
to the Tax Code of Ukraine and other legislative acts of Ukraine concerning the effect of norms for the
martial law period” that implemented:

- The right to apply the simplified taxation system of Group Il at the 2% rate by economic entities
with an annual income of up to UAH 10 billion, besides the condition relating to number of em-
ployees is ceased;

- The norms on the VAT exemption in case of supply of items in favour of the Armed Forces,
National Guard, and other territorial defence forces of Ukraine, including medical institutions,
except when such transactions for the supply of goods and services are taxed at zero VAT;

- Landlords are exempt from paying land tax and land lease (relating to state and communal
property) located in territories: on which combat actions are conducted; the temporarily occupied
territories as determined by the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine; and which are defined as con-
taminated with explosive objects and/or which contain fortifications;

- Until the termination of martial law, as well as for twelve months after such termination, private
entrepreneurs and persons engaged in independent professional activity have the right not to
pay a unified social security contribution for themselves;

- Suspension of tax audits until the termination of martial law (unless there is a request for a
budget refund);

- and numerous other changes, which have much lower impact on the Company’s operations.

The Company continues its operations in these circumstances. Despite the complete freeze on sales in
March, since April the Company gradually continues to receive settlements from its customers who have
refocused their business to continue operations under martial law. The ultimate outcome of the war and
its consequences are extremely difficult to predict but it is clear that they will have a severe effect on the
Ukrainian economy and the Company’s business.
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3. Registered (share) capital (balance sheet line 1400)
Shareholders 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
UAH % UAH %
LEGO A/S (Denmark) 1,700 100% 1,700 100%
Total 1,700 100% 1,700 100%

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company’s registered capital is fully paid in.

4. Current accounts payable for goods, works and services (balance sheet line 1615)

Item 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Goods for sale 171,447 128,695
Total 171,447 128,695
5. Current liabilities on settlements with the budget (balance sheet line 1620)

Item 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Corporate profit tax 7,750 584
Other 3,660 2,640
Total 11,410 3,224
6. Other current liabilities (balance sheet line 1690)

Item 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Advances received 636 2,537
Other 374 306
Total 1,010 2,843
7. Related party transactions

Item Purchases in 2021 Sales in 2021 Accounts payable

at 31 December 2021

Goods for sale 442,518 - 166,749
Services 1,626 11,940 -
Total 444,144 11,940 166,749
Item Purchases in 2020 Sales in 2020 Accounts payable
at 31 December 2020
Goods for sale 381,522 - 117,430
Services - 7,046 -
Total 381,522 7,046 117,430

All balances at the year end and transactions during the year relate to LEGO A/S Group entities and a
related party (The LEGO Foundation). These transactions were performed on terms agreed between
the parties.

Remuneration of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2021 included in line

2150 “Selling expenses” in the statement of financial results amounted to UAH 3,153 thousand (2020:
UAH 607.5 thousand).
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8. Taxation (statement of financial results line 2300)

ltem 2021 2020
Current taxation 11,024 590
Deferred tax (4,414) 4,289
Total 6,610 4,879

The Company’s corporate profit tax calculated in accordance with the tax legislation of Ukraine differs
from the theoretical amount received by multiplying the profit amount before taxation reflected in these
financial statements by the relevant taxation rate. The analysis of the corporate profit tax is presented

below:
Item 2021 2020
Profit before tax 36,851 27,756
Corporate profit tax rate 18% 18%
Anticipated tax charges 6,585 4,996
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 25 (117)
6,610 4,879
9. Financial instruments

The analysis of financial instruments as at 31 December 2021 by currency of future inflows and pay-

ments is as follows:

Item UAH EUR uUsD Total
Accounts receivable for goods, works and services 214,913 - 214,913
Cash and cash equivalents 90,936 - 90,936
Total financial assets 305,849 - 305,849
Accounts payable for goods, works and services 4,698 166,749 171,447
Total financial liabilities 4,698 166,749 171,447

The analysis of financial instruments as at 31 December 2020 by currency of future inflows and pay-

ments is as follows:

Item UAH EUR uUsD Total
Accounts receivable for goods, works and services 186,978 - - 186,978
Cash and cash equivalents 69,548 - - 69,548
Total financial assets 256,526 - ) 256,526
Accounts payable for goods, works and services 25,241 117,430 - 142,671
Total financial liabilities 25,241 117,430 B 142,671

The maximum amount subject to credit risk at the reporting dates is carrying value of financial assets

described above.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 ap-

proximate their carrying values as of these dates.

36



Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
10. Property, plant and equipment — Form No 5

As at 31 December 2021, the majority of property, plant and equipment comprised machinery, equip-
ment and furniture

Leased premises

The Company leases office premises totalling UAH 16,401 thousand at 1A, Sportyvna Square Str. in
Kyiv under operating lease arrangements. According to the lease contracts, the Company should use
the premises for its office accommodation and any other activity which supports its core business pro-
vided that the Company has the permit issued by appropriate authorities and the lessor’'s consent. The
Company cannot transfer the leased premises to third parties. Upon expiry of the lease contracts, the
Company has the priority right to extend the lease contracts. The annual increase in lease payments is
4% starting from the first day of the second year of lease.

1. Contingencies

Tax legislation. Ukrainian tax and customs legislation enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period is subject to varying interpretations and changes frequently. As a result, there may
be significant uncertainty as to the implementation or interpretation of the tax legislation and unclear or
non-existent implementing regulations. Management’s interpretation of such legislation as applied to the
transactions and activity of the Company may be challenged by the relevant regional and State author-
ities. Recent events in Ukraine suggest that the tax authorities may be taking a more assertive position
in their interpretation of the legislation and assessments, and it is possible that transactions and activities
of the Company that have not been challenged in the past may be challenged. As a result, significant
additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the
authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar years preceding the year of review. Under certain cir-
cumstances reviews may cover longer periods.

As a result, tax positions taken by management and the formal documentation supporting the tax posi-
tions may be challenged by tax authorities. Ukrainian tax administration is gradually strengthening, in-
cluding the fact that there is a higher risk of review of tax transactions without a clear business purpose
or with tax incompliant counterparties.

Transfer pricing. Ukrainian transfer pricing (TP) legislation is generally aligned with the international
TP principles developed by the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD), alt-
hough it has specific features. The TP legislation provides for the possibility of additional tax assessment
for controlled transactions (transactions between related parties and certain transactions between un-
related parties) if such transactions are not on an arm’s-length basis or have no business purpose.
Management has implemented relevant controls to be in compliance with this transfer pricing legislation.
Tax liabilities arising from controlled transactions are determined based on their actual transaction
prices. As the implementation transfer pricing rules is still evolving, these prices may be challenged. The
impact of any challenge cannot be reliably estimated; however, it may eventually be significant to the
financial position and/or the overall operations of the Company. Based on management’s best estimate,
these contingencies are not expected to result in loss, therefore no provisions were recorded for such
contingencies.

Management believes that its pricing policy is arm's length and has implemented relevant controls to be
in compliance with the transfer pricing legislation. Management will vigorously defend the entity's posi-
tions and interpretations that were applied in determining taxes recognised in these consolidated finan-
cial statements if these are challenged by the authorities.
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12. Commitments
Lease obligations

The future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

Period 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Within 1 year 7,641 4,592
1-5 years 13,414 16,483
Total 21,055 21,075

13. Deferred tax (balance sheet line 1045)

Differences between tax rules and NR(S)AU lead to temporary differences between accounting and
tax base of assets and liabilities.

Deferred income tax is calculated with a balance sheet approach based on its temporary differences:

31 December Charged to 31 December
2020 financial results 2021
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts - 345 345
Provisions 9,025 3,805 12,830
Other 195 264 459
Deferred tax assets, net 9,220 4,414 13,634
31 December Charged to 31 December
2019  financial results 2020
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts 7,641 (7,641) -
Provisions 5,868 3,157 9,025
Other - 195 195
Deferred tax assets, net 13,509 (4,289) 9,220
14. Accounts receivable on settlements on advances issued (balance sheet line 1130)
Item 31 December 2021 31 December
2020
Current expenses 15,560 8,525
Total 15,560 8,525

The term of accounts receivable origination on advances issued is no more than 3 months.

15. Events after the reporting period

War in Ukraine
On 24 February 2022, the Russian Federation started a full-scale military offensive in Ukraine. Conse-
quently, the Government imposed martial law all over Ukraine. Although the invasion is considered a
non-adjusting event after the reporting date, the war has a major impact on the Ukrainian people and
economy including the Company’s operations. As of the date of issue of these financial statements, the
Company partly continues its operations. Management of the Company have full control over its opera-
tions and assets. Supplies from abroad are currently suspended and, therefore, the Company expects
easing of restrictions at the legislative level to resume supplies of goods. The key counterparties grad-
ually resume operations of their offline and online stores and restore sales in the regions where no active
hostilities are conducted, and proceed with a gradual repayment of accounts receivable.
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15. Events after the reporting period (continued)

The Company's employees have relocated to relatively safe regions within Ukraine or abroad and con-
tinue working in a remote mode. At present, management of the Company cannot assess final effects
of the war on the Company's business, financial position and operating performance. Whilst the Com-
pany is able to partly continue its operations, high uncertainty exists in respect of future development
and duration of the military invasion and its impact on the Company and its staff, operations, liquidity
and assets on a short-term and long-term horizon. There may be a number of scenarios of subsequent
development of the ongoing situation with unknown probability and the magnitude of impact on the
Company may range from significant to rather severe.
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16. Comparatives to the Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

Statement of Shareholders’ Equity for the year ended 31 December 2020

Regis-tered [Revalua-| Addi- | Retained | with-
Item Code ((share) capi-|tion cap-| tional eserve  earnings (ac- Unp_ald drawn Total
tal ital capital capital cumtfla_ted capital capital
deficit)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Balance at the beginning of the year 4000 1,700 - 494 - 84,054 - - 86,248
Adjustments:
Change in accounting policies 4005 - - - - - - - -
Correction of errors 4010 - - - - - - - -
Other changes 4090 - - 148 - (534) (386)
Balance at the beginning of the year,
adjusted 4095 1,700 - 642 - 83,520 - - 85,862
Net profit/(loss) for the reporting pe-
riod 4100 - - - - 22,877 - - 22,877
Other comprehensive income for the
reporting period 4110 - - - - - - - -
Profit distribution:
Payments to the owners (dividends) 4200 - - - - - - - -
Allocation to the registered capital 4205 - - - - - - - -
Allocation to the reserve capital 4210 - - - - - - - -
Contributions by owners:
Capital contributions 4240 - - - - - - - -
Repayment of unpaid capital 4245 - - - - - - - -
Withdrawal of capital:
Repurchase of shares 4260 - - - - - - - -
Sale of treasury shares 4265 - - - - - - - -
Cancellation of treasury shares 4270 - - - - - - - -
Withdrawal of the share in equity 4275 - - - - - - - R
Other changes in equity 4290 - - - - - - - -
Changes in equity, total 4295 - - - - 22,877 - - 22,877
Balance at the end of the year 4300 1,700 - 642 - 106,397 - - 108,739

40



Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17.

Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5)

l. Intangible assets (year ended 31 December 2020)

Balance at the begin- Revaluation (upward +, Disposals in the year | Amorti Other changes for the | Balance at the end of
Li ning of the year Addi- downward -) p Y mt? 1sa- Impairment year the year
Groups of intangible assets ihe accumu- | tions in accumu- accumu- fon losses for accumu- accumu-
code | costor cost or va- cost or charges for cost or va- cost or va-
. lated amor-| the year ! lated amor- . lated amor- the year : lated amor- L lated amor-
valuation . . luation M valuation M the year luation D luation P
tisation tisation tisation tisation tisation
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

Rights to use natural resources| 010 i i i i i i i i i i i i i
Rights to use property 020 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Rights for commercial signs 030 B B B - - B B - B B - B -
Rights for the industrial prop- - - - - - - - - - - - - -
erty objects 040
Copyright and allied rights 050 ) ) ) ] ] ) ) ] ) ) ] ) ]

060 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other intangible assets 070 160 144 3 3 3 160 144 B B B B B B
Total 080 160 144 - - - 160 144 - - - - - -
Goodwill 090 - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Item Line code Amount
1 2 3

From line 080, col. 14
cost of intangible assets with restricted ownership rights 081 -
cost of pledged intangible assets 082 -
cost of intangible assets created in-house 083 -
From line 080, col. 5, cost of intangible assets received for targeted financing 084 -
From line 080, col. 15, accumulated amortisation of intangible assets with restricted ownership rights 085 -
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17.

Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5) (continued)

Il. Property, plant and equipment (year ended 31 December 2020)

Balance at the be- Revaluation (up- Disposals in the Other changes for| Balance at the end of - - Including
ginning of the year g ward +, year , . the year the year Received on finance Transf_erred on
) Addi- ownward -) Deprec’n | Impair- lease operating lease
Groups of property, plant and equipment (I:':;i accu- | tions in c:r‘r:l-u- a;‘::' cft;a:rt%(:s Iosn:thfor ct?:l-u- aceumu- accu- a:::f'
cost or |mulated| the year | cost or lated cost or lated year the year cost or lated cost or lated de- cost or |mulated| costor lated
valuation |depreci- valuation da N valuation | ,2¢ valua-tion| ,2te valuation | 229 %€ | yaluation depreci-| valuation ate
ation lepre- dgp_re- dgp_re- preciation ation d_ep_re-
ciation ciation ciation ciation
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
Land plots 100 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Investment property 105 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital costs of land improvements 110 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Buildings, constructions and transmission equip-
ment 120 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Machinery and equipment 130 2,252 1,338 451 - - 1,620| 1,469 834 - - - 1,083 703 - - - -
Vehicles 140 - - - - - - - - - - -
Tools, fittings and furniture 150 6,077 946 2,276 - - 634 379 1,380 - - - 7,719 1,947 - - - -
Livestock 160 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Perennial plants 170 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other fixed assets 180 608 595| 11,238 - - - - 749 - - - 11,846 1,344 - - - -
Library assets 190 - - - - - - - - - - -
i’;'e"r::””em low-value 200 359 358 410 ) ) 83 83 411 ) ) ) 686 686 ) ) ) )
Temporary buildings 210 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Natural resources 220 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Packaging 230 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Hire items 240 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other non-current tangible assets 250 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total 260 9,296| 3,237 14,375 - - 2,337 1,931 3,374 - - - 21,334 4,680 - - - -
Item Line code Amount
From line 260, col. 14 cost of PPE where legal restrictions of ownership rights exist 261 -
cost of pledged PPE 262 -
residual value of PPE out of use on a temporary basis (conservation, reconstruction, etc.) 263 -
cost (or valuation) of fully depreciated PPE 264
PPE of rented integrated property complex 2641 -
From line 260, col. 8 residual value of PPE decommissioned for future sale 265 -
residual value of fixed assets lost due to accidents 2651 -
From line 260, col. 5 cost of PPE purchased for targeted finance 266 -
Cost of PPE received on operating lease terms 267 16,401
From line 260, col. 15 laccumulated depreciation of fixed assets where legal restrictions of ownership rights exist 268 -
From line 105, col. 14 lcost of investment property valued at fair value 269
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17.
ued)

lll. Capital Investments (year ended 31 December 2020)

Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5) (contin-

Item (I:';zz For the year At year end
1 2 3 4
Capital construction 280 3,242 1,685
Purchase (manufacturing) of PPE 290 - -
Purchase (manufacturing) of other non-current tangible assets 300 - -
Purchase (manufacturing) of intangible assets 310 - -
Purchase (growing) of long-term biological assets 320 - -
Other 330 - -
Total 340 3,242 1,685
From line 340, col. 3
capital investments in investment property (341) -
financial costs included in financial investments (342)
IV. Financial investments (year ended 31 December 2020)
Item Line For the year At year end
code Long-term Current
1 2 3 4 5
A. Financial investments under equity method into:
associates 350 - - -
subsidiaries 360 - - -
joint activities 370 - - -
B. Other financial investments into: - - -
shares in other entities’ statutory capital 380 - - -
shares 390 - - -
bonds 400 - - -
other 410 - - -
Total (A + B) 420 - - -
421 - - -

From line 1035, col. 4 of the Balance Sheet

Other long-term financial investments stated:

(Statement of Financial Position) at cost (421)
at fair value (422)
at amortised cost (423)
From line 1160, col. 4 of the Balance Sheet Current financial investments stated:
(Statement of Financial Position) at cost (424)
at fair value (425)
at amortised cost (426)
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5) (contin-

ued)

V. Income and expenses (year ended 31 December 2020)

Line
Item Income Expenses
code
1 2 3 4
A. Other operating income and expenses -
Operating lease of assets 440 - -
Operating exchange difference 450 1,210 5,450
Sale of other current assets 460 - -
Fines, penalties and interest 470 - -
Maintenance of social assets 480 - -
Other operating income and expenses 490 - 4,749
including: N 491 } }
charges to bad debt provision
non-productive expenses and losses 492 - -
B. Income and expenses from participation in equity of: - -
associates 500 - -
subsidiaries 510 - -
joint activities 520 - -
C. Other financial income and expenses - -
Dividends 530 - -
Interest 540 - -
Finance lease of assets 550 - -
Other financial income and expenses 560 - -
D. Other income and expenses - -
Sale of financial investments 570 - -
Income from business combinations 580 - -
Result of impairment test 590 - -
Non-operating exchange difference 600 - -
Assets received free of charge 610 - -
Write-off of non-current assets 620 - 259
Other income and expenses 630 - -
Item Line Amount
code
1 2 3
Barter transactions with goods, works and services 631 -
Share in sales revenue from sales of goods, works and services under barter 632
agreements with related parties (%) )
From lines 540-560 col. 4: Financial costs included in cost of assets 633 -
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17.

VI. Cash (year ended 31 December 2020)

Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5) (continued)

Item Line code At year end
1 2 3
Cash on hand 640 -
Current account 650 69,324
Other bank accounts (letters of credit, cheque books) 660 224
Cash in transit 670 -
Cash equivalents 680 -
Total 690 69,548
From line 1090, col. 4 of the Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) Cash 691 )
with restricted use
VII. Provisions (year ended 31 December 2020)
Increase during the report- Unused Amount of ex-
B ing period pected compen-
alance at amount re- N
T f provision Line | the begin- Amount used | versed dur- sation by tl_1e Balance at
ype ot p g ther party in- the end of
code | ning of the | Provision Additional |during the year| ing the re- o h
. cluded in the pro-| the year
year created charges porting pe- vision assess-
riod ment
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Provision for vacation pay- 710 568 1167 B 667 } } 1,068
ments to employees
Provision for additional fu- 720 } B B B } } B
ture pension expenses
Provision for future ex-
penses related to guaran- 730 - - - - - - -
tees
Provision for future restruc-

- 740 - - - - - - -
turing expenses
Provision for future ex-
penses related to onerous | 750 - - - - - - -
contracts
zgfg's'm forbonuses pay- | 749 915 1,950 - 819 - - 2,046
Other provisions 770 32,599 62,986 - 45,241 - - 50,344
Allowance for doubtful ac- 775 44,768 B B 2316 42,452 } B
counts
Total 780 78,850 66,103 - 49,043 42,452 - 53,458
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5) (continued)

VIII. Inventories (year ended 31 December 2020)

. . Revaluation in the year
Item Line Closing book Increase in the net |Downward revalua-
code value
realisable value® tion
1 2 3 4 5

Raw and other materials 800 95 - -
Purchased components and units 810 - - -
Fuel 820 - - -
Packaging 830 - - -
Construction materials 840 - - -
Spare parts 850 - - -
Agricultural materials 860 - - -
Current biological assets 870 - - -
Low-value items 880 - - -
Work in progress 890 3,016 - -
Finished products 900 - - -
Goods for sale 910 365 - -
Total 920 3,476 - -
From line 920, col. 3 Book value of inventories:

shown at net realisable value (921) _

transferred for processing (922) .

pledged (923) _

transferred on commission (924) _
Assets on safekeeping (off-balance sheet account 02) (925) .
From line 1200, col. 4 of the Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) Invento- (926)

ries held for sale

* Determined according to p. 28 of NR(S)AU 9 “Inventories”
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17.

IX. Accounts receivable (year ended 31 December 2020)

Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5) (continued)

Including outstanding by age:
Line | Total at year-
Item d d
code en Less than 12 |From 12to 18 |From 18 to 36
months months months
1 2 3 4 5 6
ngc;unts receivable for goods, works and ser- 940 186,978 186,978
Other current accounts receivable 950 15 15
Bad accounts receivable written-off during the reporting year (951) -
From lines 940 and 950 accounts receivable with related parties (952) -
X. Losses and shortages resulting from damages (year ended 31 December 2020)
Item Line Amount
code
1 2 3
Losses and shortages identified and written-off during the year 960 -
Recognised as debts of the guilty parties during the year 970 -
Losses and shortages where guilty parties are not identified at year end (off-balance sheet account 980 )
072)
XI. Construction contracts (year ended 31 December 2020)
Item Line Amount
code
1 2 3
Revenue from construction contracts for current year 1110 -
IAmounts outstanding at year end:
from customers, gross 1120 -
to customers, gross 1130 -
on prepayments received 1140 -
Overdue amounts at year end 1150 -
Cost of work done by subcontractors for construction contracts in progress 1160 -
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Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5) (continued)

XIll. Income tax (year ended 31 December 2020)

Line

Item code Amount
1 2 3
Current corporate profit tax 1210 590
Deferred tax assets: -
at the beginning of year 1220 13,509
at the end of year 1225 9,220
Deferred tax liabilities: -
at the beginning of year 1230 -
at the end of year 1235 -
Included in the Statement of Financial Results — total 1240 4,879
including: -
current corporate profit tax 1241 590
decrease (increase) of deferred tax assets 1242 4,289
increase (decrease) of deferred tax liabilities 1243 -
Recorded in equity — total 1250 -
including: -
current corporate profit tax 1251 -
decrease (increase) of deferred tax assets 1252 -
increase (decrease) of deferred tax liabilities 1253 -
XIll. Use of depreciation charge (year ended 31 December 2020)
Item (I:-ci:ii Amount
1 2 3

Depreciation charge for the year 1300 3,374
Used during the year — total 1310 -
Including for: -
construction of units 1311 -
purchasing (manufacturing) and improvements of PPE 1312 -
including machines and equipment 1313 -
purchasing (manufacturing) of intangible assets 1314 -
paying off loans received for capital investments 1315 -
1316 -

1317 -
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LEGO UKRAINE Limited Liability Company
Financial Statements in accordance with NR(S)AU as at and for the year ended
31 December 2020

Other Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
17. Comparatives to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (Form No 5) (continued)

XIV. Biological assets (year ended 31 December 2020)

Recorded at cost Recorded at fair value
. Disposals in the .
. . Line Opening balance year Deoreciation Economic ben Closing balance Addi. Changes
Groups of biological assets code Additions accumu- | oP! Impairment | efits from re- accumu- | Opening e in fair |Dispo-sals| Closing
. . accumu- |, . . charges for . . tions in X
historical in the year| historical |lated de- losses covery of as- | historical |lated de- balance value for |in the year|balance
lated de- . the year . the year
cost AN cost preci- sets cost preci- the year
preci-ation ation ation
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
Long-term biological assets - to-
s L 1410 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
talsteincluding:
draft livestock 1411 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
productive livestock 1412 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
perennial plants 1413 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

1414 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
other long-term biological assets 1415 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

P i i
Curfen_t biological assets - totaltin- 1420 | X } | X X | | } X | | | i
cluding:
livestock 1421 - X - - X X - - - X - - - -
b|o|og|cal assets in bioconversion (other 1422 | X ) i X X i i ) X i ) ) )
than livestock)

1423 - X - - X X - - - X - - - -
other current biological assets 1424 - X - - X X - - - X - - - -
Total 1430 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

From line 1430, col. 5 and col. 14: cost of biological assets purchased for targeted finance (1431) -
residual value of non-current biological assets, historical cost of current biological assets and fair value of biological assets lost due to emer-

From line 1430, col. 6 and col. 16: gency events (1432) -

From line 1430, col. 11 and col. 17: book value of biological assets with restricted ownership rights as prescribed by law (1433) -
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